
 
Overton Public School District 24-0004 
Overton Board of Education 
Board Meeting: March 11, 2024 
401 7th Street, Overton, NE 68863 
School LMC 
 
Mission Statement: The mission of Overton Public School is to provide opportunities for everyone to be Engaged, 
Enlightened, and Empowered. 
      

    
7:30  A.  Call meeting to order 
 
7:35  B.  Compliance Statement    

 
7:40  C.  With consent of the Board, receive reports from school personnel, patrons, or  
                             community groups 
 
7:45  D.  Read and consider communications 
 
7:50  E.  Approve the agenda 
 
7:55  F.  Approve minutes 
 
8:00  G.  Act on bills for payment 
 
  H.  Matters pending before the board 
 
8:05  1. Adjourn Meeting  
 

I. Board Reports and Discussion 
 
8:10  1.  Board Reports: 

a. Meetings Attended 
b. Upcoming Meetings  
c. Committee Reports 

   
2.  Board Discussion: 

     
J.      Administrative Reports: 

 
8:15   1. Principal’s Report 
   
8:20   2.  Superintendent's Report. 
 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Next regularly scheduled meeting April 8, 2024 



COMMENTS: 
E. 

a.  
 
 

DISCUSSION: 
F. 1.  Board Reports and Discussion: 

 a.    Meetings Attended:      
b. Upcoming Meetings:  Schedule Provided 
c. Transportation:   
d. Interlocal:     
e. Curriculum:    
f. Negotiations:  

 
2.         Discussion Topics:    

        a.     Projects 
                                     b.     April Board Meeting - April 8, 2024 
          c.     
 
          d.    Other 

 
 

G.   Administrative Reports: 
 

Principal’s Report 
 

1. Upcoming Calendar  
2. Enrollment Update 
3. 2024-2025 Class Schedule 

 
SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT 

 
1. Option Enrollment -  

Out –   a.   Brielle Kenney – Grade K in 2024-2025 to Elm Creek  
           
In -     a.   Nevaeh Sauer – Grade 11 in 2024-2025 from Lexington 
 b.   Leah Sauer – Grade 10 in 2024-2025 from Lexington 
 c.   Chase Sorenson – Grade K in 2024-2025 from Lexington    
 
 

Change of status – a.  
 

2. Board Meeting for April – Date and Time 
3. Project Updates 
4. Financial Review 
5. Legislative Issues 
6. Staffing Update 
7. Other 



Overton Public School 24-0004 
P.O. Box 310 401 7th Street 
Overton, NE 68863-0310 

OVERTON EAGLES 

Mark A. Aten, Superintendent 

Brian Fleischman, Principal 
Jody Skallberg, Counselor 
Brian Fleischman, Activities Director 

Phone: (308) 987-2424 • Fax: (308) 987-2349 • www.overtoneagles.org 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

OF OVERTON, NEBRASKA 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that a meeting of the Board of Education 

at School District 24-0004, of Overton, Nebraska will be held at 

7:30 p.m. on Monday, March 11, 2024 at the Overton Public School 

LMC, which meeting is open to the public. An agenda for such 

meeting kept continuously current, is available for public 

inspection at the office of the Superintendent, in the Overton 

Public School Building, 401 7th Street, Overton, Nebraska. 

Jared Walahoski 

Secretary of the Board 

Board of Education 
Heather Brennan Clayton Jeffries Gordon Lassen Joel Meier Keith Rudeen Jared Walahoski 



Overton Public Schools 
Overton Board of Education  

 
Minutes of the Regular Board of Education Meeting 
Overton Public School District 24-0004 
 
Board President or Presiding Officer: Meeting to Order and Roll Call. 
The March 11, 2024 regular monthly meeting of the Overton Public School Board of Education 
is called to order at 7:30 p.m. in the school LMC and is now in session. Roll call. 
 
    Present  Absent 

Brennan  ____  ____    
Jeffries   ____  ____    
Lassen   ____  ____    
Meier   ____  ____    
Rudeen   ____  ____   
Walahoski  ____  ____    

 
Excuse the absence of board member __________________________ 
 
    Yes  No 

Brennan  ____  ____    
Jeffries   ____  ____    
Lassen   ____  ____    
Meier   ____  ____    
Rudeen   ____  ____   
Walahoski  ____  ____       

         Vote _____________ 
 
Compliance Statement: To be in compliance with LB 898, the Nebraska Open Meetings Law, I 
would like to inform the public that a copy of the Open Meetings Law is posted near the LMC 
check-out counter. This meeting has been published in the March 7, 2024 edition of the The 
Beacon Observer, and also posted on the south doors of the school, Post Office, school’s web site 
and the Security First Bank. There is packet provided for the public. 
 
Comment Section: At this time, visitors may address the board. If it is regarding an agenda item, 
please state your name and refer to the agenda item. This is the only time you will be able to 
comment on the item. If it is regarding a topic not on the agenda, and not a personnel item, we 
will hear your comments but will not add the item to the action list, we may add it to the 
discussion list next month. If it is a personnel issue, you must follow steps outlined in Board 
Policy regarding personnel concerns. The total time allotted for the public comment will not 
exceed thirty minutes and each member of the public will be allotted not more than five minutes 
to address the Board. If a group wishes to speak, please designate one spokesperson for the group. 
 
Guests Present: See Attached Document A. 
 
The following presented reports to the Board: 
 
1.  ______________________     - Topic - _______________________ 
 
2.  ______________________   - Topic - _______________________ 



3.  _______________________________   - Topic - _______________________ 
 
 
The following communications were read or presented to the Board: 
 
1.  _______________________________   - Topic - _______________________ 
 
2.  _______________________________   - Topic - _______________________ 
 
3.  _______________________________   - Topic - _______________________ 
 
 
 
A Motion made by __________________ and seconded by _____________________ 
 
to approve the agenda of the March 11, 2024 meeting. 
Discussion:  
 
Votes:    YES  NO    ABSENT 

Brennan  ____  ____    
Jeffries   ____  ____    
Lassen   ____  ____    
Meier   ____  ____    
Rudeen   ____  ____   
Walahoski  ____  ____    
 
       Vote_____________ 

 
A Motion made by __________________ and seconded by _____________________ 
 
to approve the minutes of the February 12, 2024 regular board meeting as presented. 
Discussion:  
 
Votes:    YES  NO    ABSENT 

Brennan  ____  ____    
Jeffries   ____  ____    
Lassen   ____  ____    
Meier   ____  ____    
Rudeen   ____  ____   
Walahoski  ____  ____    
  
       Vote_____________ 

 
 
A motion by ___________________ and seconded by __________________  
 
to approve the March bill roster in the amount of $55,409.91 and payroll salary and benefits 
in the amount of $300,784.55. 
Discussion:  
 
 



Votes:    YES  NO    ABSENT 
Brennan  ____  ____    
Jeffries   ____  ____    
Lassen   ____  ____    
Meier   ____  ____    
Rudeen   ____  ____   
Walahoski  ____  ____    
 
       Vote_____________ 
 
 



 
MINUTES OF THE OVERTON PUBLIC SCHOOL BOARD OF EDUCATION 

REGULAR MEETING 
February 12, 2024 

7:30 p.m.  
 

Board President called the meeting to order. Members Present: 
 
Brennan 
Jeffries 
Lassen 
Meier 
Rudeen 
Walahoski 
 
Notification:  The February 12, 2024 meeting of the Overton Public School Board of Education was posted 
at the Overton Public School, on the Overton Public School website, Beacon Observer, Overton Post 
Office, and the Security First Bank. 
 
Open Meetings Information: To be in compliance with LB 898, The Nebraska Open Meetings Act, Board 
President informed the public that a copy of the Open Meetings Law is posted near the LMC check-out 
counter. 
 
Administration Present: Mark Aten, Superintendent, Brian Fleischman, Principal. 
 
Guests Present: No Guests. 
 
Public Comments: No Public Comments. 
 
Reports: No Reports. 
 
Communications: No Communications. 
   
Other:  None. 
 
Action Items: 

 
1. Agenda: Moved by Brennan, seconded by Jeffries to approve the agenda of the February 12, 

2024 regular monthly board meeting as presented. Discussion: Discussion was limited as 
there were no changes made to the agenda.  Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, 
Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 
 

2. Minutes: Moved by Meier, seconded by Walahoski to approve the minutes of the January  
15, 2024 regular board meeting minutes as presented. Discussion: Discussion was limited as 
there were no corrections made to the minutes.  Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, 
Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
3. Claims: Moved by Brennan, seconded by Walahoski to pay the February General Fund bill 

roster in the amount $47,940.00 and the payroll salary and benefits in the amount of 
$303,593.96. Discussion: Superintendent provided additional information on several of the 
bills. Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and 
Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
4. Moved by Jeffries, seconded by Walahoski to approve contract with the ESU 10 for Special 

Education Services, Physical and Occupational Therapy, and Audiology. Discussion: Board 
members agreed the contract would best serve the student population. Motion carried 6-0. 



Voting Yes (6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and Walahoski. Voting No: (0). 
Absent (0). 

 
5. Moved by Rudeen, seconded by Meier to approve the contract for the principal for the 2024-

2025 school year. Discussion: Superintendent recommended the board approve the contract. 
Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and 
Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
6. Moved by Walahoski, seconded by Jeffries to approve Security First Bank and FirsTier Bank 

as official depositories for district funds. Discussion: Board agreed both banks are serving the 
financial needs of the district. Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, 
Meier, Rudeen, and Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
7. Moved by Brennan, seconded by Jeffries to accept the resignation of Kati Harmon effective 

the end of the 2023-2024 school year. Discussion: Miss Harmon met the district’s resignation 
time frame. Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, 
and Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
8. Moved by Jeffries, seconded by Walahoski to approve the teaching contract for Gabrielle 

Renderos. Discussion: Administration recommended the board approve the contract. Motion 
carried 6-0. Voting Yes (6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and Walahoski. Voting 
No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
9. Moved by Walahoski, seconded by Brennan to adjourn the meeting at 8:54 p.m. Discussion: 

Limited discussion as the board agreed it was time to adjourn. Motion carried 6-0. Voting Yes 
(6): Brennan, Jeffries, Lassen, Meier, Rudeen, and Walahoski. Voting No: (0). Absent (0). 

 
 
Board Reports and Discussion Topics: 
 

1. Board Reports:  
a. Interlocal: The annual interlocal meeting with the Village of Overton board was 

held on Monday, February 12, 2024.  
     

2. Discussion Topics: 
a. March meeting is scheduled for Monday, March 11, 2024 beginning at 7:30 p.m. in 

the LMC. 
b. Board Election Date 
c. State Aid Model 

 
Administrative Reports: 
 

Principal’s Report: 
a. Calendar update 
b. Enrollment update 
c. Parent Teacher Conference Information 
d. Student Teaching Compensation Update 

 
Superintendent’s Report: 

1. Enrollment Option Report 
 

2. Option Enrollment -   
   Out: 
    a.      

           
In      



a.  
      
                                           Change of Status a.    
  

3. Financial Information 
4. Budget Review 
5. Project Updates 
6. ESSER III Update 
7. Safety and Security Update – Elevator Project 



 Overton Public School District

 Bill Roster

Month: March

Status: Official

3/11/2024 Total: 55,409.91$                                                                                                       

Vendor Total Amount New Code Description

Airgas 1,016.22$                                                            Reg. Instruct. Ind. Tech. Supplies

Amazon Business 313.68$                                                               Reg. Instruct. - LMC Supplies

Area Services 550.00$                                                               Building Repairs and Maintenance

ATC Communications 160.78$                                                               Fiscal Services - Phone Service

Beacon Observer 270.37$                                                               Printing and Publishing Services

BigSigns.com 1,067.40$                                                            Classroom Door Window Covers

Bill Auto Parts 200.00$                                                               Care & Upkeep of Grounds - Snow Removal

Black Hills Energy 2,519.05$                                                            Operations of Buildings - Natural Gas 

Broad Reach 129.70$                                                               LMC Books & Periodicals

CenturyLink 62.33$                                                                 Operation of Buildings Communications - Long Distance Phone

Culligan 522.75$                                                               Building Repairs and Maintenance - Soft Water Salt

Dan's Sanitation 318.25$                                                               Operation of Buildings Cleaning Services - Trash Removal

Dawson Public Power District - Prek 300.51$                                                               Operation of Preschool - Electricity

Dawson Public Power District - School 4,344.26$                                                            Operation of Buildings Electricity

Dawson Public Power District - Trans. 307.64$                                                               Vehicle Servicing and Maintenance - Reg. Ed.- Bus Barn Energy

Eakes Office Solutions 237.64$                                                               Reg. Instruction - Copier Suplies

Ecolab 167.79$                                                               Operation of Buildings Pest Control

ESU 10 500.00$                                                               SPED Mental Health Services

ESU 10 500.00$                                                               SPED Mental Health Services

ESU 10 20.00$                                                                 Reg. Instruct. Employee Training - L/A

ESU 10 - SPED Services 11.75$                                                                 SPED Speech Path. & Audiology Ages Birth-2

ESU 10 - SPED Services 8,227.31$                                                            SPED Speech Path. & Audiology - Elementary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 791.25$                                                               SPED Speech Path. & Audiology - Age 3-4

ESU 10 - SPED Services 479.30$                                                               SPED P.T. Services - Elementary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 189.34$                                                               SPED Supervision - Birth - 2

ESU 10 - SPED Services 189.34$                                                               SPED Supervision - Ages 3-4

ESU 10 - SPED Services 479.30$                                                               SPED P.T. Services - Secondary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 762.47$                                                               SPED O.T. Services - Elementary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 762.47$                                                               SPED O.T. Services - Secondary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 841.55$                                                               SPED Supervision - Elementary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 190.62$                                                               SPED O.T. Services - Ages 3-4

ESU 10 - SPED Services 190.61$                                                               SPED O.T. Services - Birth - 2

ESU 10 - SPED Services 119.83$                                                               SPED P.T. Services - Ages 3-4

ESU 10 - SPED Services 119.83$                                                               SPED P.T. Services - Birth - 2

ESU 10 - SPED Services 841.55$                                                               SPED Supervision - Secondary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 118.68$                                                               SPED Supervision - Vocational Secondary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 1,438.02$                                                            SPED Psychological Services - Secondary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 1,438.02$                                                            SPED Psychological Services - Elementary

ESU 10 - SPED Services 359.50$                                                               SPED Psychological Services - Ages 3-4

ESU 10 - SPED Services 359.51$                                                               SPED Psychological Services - Birth - 2

ESU 10 - SPED Services 47.00$                                                                 SPED Speech Path. & Audiology - Secondary

Foster Lumber, LLC 43.48$                                                                 Reg. Instruction - VoAg. Supplies

Foster Lumber, LLC 422.14$                                                               Reg. Instruct. - Custodial Supplies

Great Plains Communication 101.95$                                                               Internet Connection - Family Center

Kearney Quality Sew & Vac, Inc 37.96$                                                                 Reg. Instruct. Custodial Supplies - Bags

MARC 900.76$                                                               Operation of Grounds - Chemicals and Fertilizer

Mead Lumber Co. 2.98$                                                                   Operation of Buildings Supplies 

Midamerica Books 381.24$                                                               LMC Books & Periodicals

Mystery Science 2,835.00$                                                            Reg.Instruction - ESSER III - Science Curriculum - Elementary

Nebraska State Fire Marshall/Boiler Division 120.00$                                                               Maintenance of Buildings Professional Services - Boiler Inspect.

Plum Creek Market Place 110.72$                                                               Reg. Instruction - Family Consumer Science Supplies

Prime Secured 3,105.87$                                                            Reg. Instruct. Technology Supplies

RAS Technology Consultants, Inc 250.00$                                                               Administrative Technology Services - Annual Subscription 

The Home Depot Pro 686.26$                                                               Reg. Instruct. - Custodial Supplies

US Foods - The Thompson Co. 903.90$                                                               Reg. Instruction - Custodial Supplies

Village of Overton 3,106.11$                                                            Operation of Buildings - Family Center Energy 2023

Village of Overton 322.00$                                                               Reg. Instruct. - Utility Services

Village of Overton -  Prek 3 50.00$                                                                 Early Childhood Utility Services

Village of Overton - Interlocal Agency 3,000.00$                                                            Operation of Buildings - Annual Interlocal Repairs and Mainteance



1 
 

 
Matters Pending Before the Board: 

 
 
Motion____________________  Second ____________________ 

 
1. Action Item: Consider adjourning the meeting. 
 
 
Motion: To approve adjourning the meeting at _____:_____ p.m. 
Discussion: 
 
Votes:    YES  NO    ABSENT 

Brennan  ____  ____      ____    
Jeffries   ____  ____      ____    
Lassen   ____  ____      ____    
Meier   ____  ____      ____    
Rudeen   ____  ____      ____     
Walahoski  ____  ____      ____    
  
       Vote____________ 
 



 

Page 1 of 5 

5001 
Compulsory Attendance and Excessive Absenteeism 

 
"School success is 90 percent showing up; the other half is mental." Yogi 

Berra 

Research on policies and practices that effectively encourage regular student 
attendance share some key components: 

1. Education of parents regarding school attendance requirements. 
2. Effective policies and practices to monitor attendance. 
3. Clear definition of excessive absenteeism and a two-stage response 

to excessive absences. 

The board has considered this educational research and used it to create the 
following policy on Compulsory Attendance and Excessive Absenteeism.   
 
Required Attendance 
 
Every person residing in the school district who has legal or actual charge or 
control of any child who is of mandatory attendance age shall cause that 
child to attend a public or private school regularly unless the child has 
graduated from high school or has been allowed to disenroll pursuant to this 
policy. 
 
Mandatory Attendance Age 
 
All children who are or will turn six years old before January 1 of the current 
school year are of mandatory attendance age.  Children who have not turned 
eighteen years of age are of mandatory attendance age.   
 
A child who will not reach age 7 before January 1 of the current school year 
may be excused from mandatory attendance if the child’s parent or guardian 
completes an affidavit affirming that alternative educational arrangements 
have been made for the child.  A copy of the required affidavit is attached to 
this policy. 
 
Discontinuing Enrollment – 5 Year Old Students 
 
The person seeking to discontinue the enrollment of a student who will not 
reach six years of age prior to January 1 of the current school year shall 
submit a signed, written request and to the superintendent using the form 
which is attached to this policy.  The school district may request written 
verification or documentation that the person signing the form has legal or 
actual charge or control of the student.  The school district shall discontinue 
the enrollment of any student who satisfies these requirements.  Any 



 

Page 2 of 5 

student whose enrollment is discontinued under this subsection shall not be 
eligible to reenroll in this school district until the beginning of the following 
school year unless otherwise required by law.    
 
Discontinuing Enrollment – 16 and 17 Year Old Students 
 
Only children who are at least 16 years of age may be disenrolled from the 
district.  The person seeking to discontinue the child’s enrollment shall 
submit a signed, written request and submit it to the superintendent using 
the form which is attached to this policy.  The district will follow the 
procedures outlined on the attached form in considering requests to 
disenroll. 
 
Only children disenrolling to attend a non-accredited school may be exempt 
from this policy.  The person with legal or actual charge or control of the 
child must provide the superintendent with a copy of the signed request 
submitted to the State Department of Education for attending non-
accredited schools.  The superintendent may confirm the validity of the 
submission with the State Department of Education. 
 
Attendance Officer 
 
Each building principal is designated as an attendance officer for the district.  
Each building principal, at his or her discretion, may delegate these 
responsibilities to any other qualified individual.  The attendance officer is 
responsible for enforcing the provisions of state law relating to compulsory 
attendance.  This responsibility includes but is not limited to filing a report 
with the county attorney of the county in which a student resides. 
Compensation for the duties of attendance officer is included in the salary 
for the superintendent or designee. 
 
Expectations for Regular Attendance: 

 
1. Students are expected to attend every class, every day. 
2. The only "excused" absences shall be: 

a.) absences when a licensed health care provider has confirmed in 
writing that, in his/her professional medical opinion and within 
his/her scope of practice, the student or a child whom the 
student is parenting is so physically or mentally ill that 
attendance of the student is impracticable or impossible; 

b.) absences when the Nebraska State Patrol confirms in writing 
that weather conditions have made the roads impassable so that 
the student's attendance impracticable or impossible;   

c.) student attendance at a school-sponsored activity; 



 

Page 3 of 5 

d.) student has been suspended or expelled from school by the 
school district; and   

e.) absences required by law enforcement, child protective services 
or a court of competent jurisdiction, confirmed in writing to the 
school district. 

3. All other absences, including absences for minor illnesses, family 
events, routine medical appointments are simply "absences."  

4. Upon return from every absence or partial-day absence, students 
must remain after school for 30 minutes to meet with teachers, 
work on missed assignments or simply to study.  The location and 
supervision of the student will be determined by the building 
principal in consultation with the student's classroom teacher(s). 

5. Students must not be absent from any course more than seven 
days in any given quarter in order to earn academic credit for that 
course for that quarter.  Students who lose credit in any given 
course due to absences may appeal that loss of credit to his/her 
building principal. 

 
Attendance Incentives: 

 
Building principals will establish attendance incentives for their students.  
Those may include: 

 Special Recognition of students who have 95% or greater attendance 
each quarter 

 Excusal from certain classroom assignments (final exam, written 
report) for students with 95% or greater attendance each semester 

 Special rewards (movie day, field day, extra recess) for students who 
have 95% or greater attendance 

At the conclusion of each quarter building principals report to the board what 
incentives were implemented and the effectiveness of the incentive in 
improving student attendance and engagement. 
When students are absent from school, district staff will respond as 
follows: 
First Stage Response to Absences  

1. A member of district staff will contact parent via telephone for every 
absence if the parent has not contacted the school in advance. 

2. After a student's third absence in any given quarter, the school's 
attendance officer will schedule a meeting with the student's parents 
or guardians.  That meeting will be documented on the attached form.  

a. This meeting must be attended by attendance officer, parents, 
social worker or principal, and the student (if appropriate) 

b. The meeting shall be documented  
c. The meeting shall develop a collaborative plan to assist the 

student in improving his/her attendance  



 

Page 4 of 5 

3. Building principals must meet with teachers who have 10% of their 
students miss seven or more days of class in any given quarter to 
review strategies to increase student engagement.  A consistent 
pattern of student absences from a teacher's classes may result in a 
formal remediation plan. 

4. The superintendent must meet with the building principal if more than 
10% of students miss seven or more days of class in any quarter to 
review strategies to improve the school building's climate. A consistent 
pattern of building-wide absenteeism may result in a formal 
remediation plan.   
 

Second Stage Response to Absences 
Students who accrue more than 20 absences in a school year may be 
referred to the county attorney for action under NEB. REV. STAT. § 43-
247(3)(a) and (b). 
 
Adopted on: _________________________ 
Revised on: _________________________ 
Reviewed on: ________________________  
  



 

Page 5 of 5 

 

 

Acknowledgment of Receipt  

  

I understand that consistent school attendance is required by state law.  I 
also understand that student achievement is directly linked to excellent 
attendance.  I have received the board of education's new policy on student 
attendance and have reviewed it.   

  

Student 
Name_______________________________________________________ 

Student 
Signature_____________________________________________________ 

Date_________________________________________________________ 

  

  

Parent/Guardian 
Name________________________________________________________ 

Parent/Guardian 
Signature_____________________________________________________ 

Date_________________________________________________________ 
  

 



2024-2025 Class Schedule Changes 

 For the 23-24 class schedule we added more math time for our 5th & 6th grade 
classes.  This caused a move for our 5th & 6th grade Language Arts classes within the 
schedule that created some issues with Mrs. Lassen’s LMC time.  Within the 24-25 
class schedule, the 5th & 6th grade Math and Language Arts time is remaining the 
same but when they meet has been altered to adjust Mrs. Lassen’s schedule to 
benefit her LMC time.  The split period has moved from 4th period to 2nd period.  
This causes Miss Kathman, Mrs. Remmenga, & Mrs. Stelling’s 2nd & 4th periods to 
switch.   Homeroom for 7th grade will move to 2nd period from 4th period as well.   
 

 Mr. Matthews 6th & 8th periods are switching around to allow students more 
opportunity to take Marketing/Video Production.  Having this 6th period limited 
which grades could take this class.   





Official
2023-2024 % Change -0.126% -0.578% -0.30% 0.42% 0.52% 0.72% 1.01%

Total September October November December January February March 
Payroll -$                      299,738.24$        298,824.91$        307,176.73$       297,511.64$       294,496.84$        303,593.96$        300,784.55$        
Bill Roster -$                      18,223.17$          79,377.65$          52,551.38$         57,288.43$         62,245.85$          47,940.00$          55,409.91$          
Adjustments -$                      -$                    -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                     
Total Expenditures -$                      317,961.41$        378,202.56$        359,728.11$       354,800.07$       356,742.69$        351,533.96$        356,194.46$        
YTD Total -$                      317,961.41$        696,163.97$        1,055,892.08$    1,410,692.15$    1,767,434.84$     2,118,968.80$     2,475,163.26$     
Total Receipts -$                      -$                    -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                     

Comparison
Payroll 257.33$               (5,399.07)$           3,594.81$           1,108.08$           (171.61)$             4,642.54$            (1,332.53)$           
Bill Roster (658.22)$             1,750.66$            (2,755.98)$          8,053.58$           3,353.10$            1,430.19$            10,820.47$          
Monthly Difference (400.89)$             (3,648.41)$           838.83$              9,161.66$           3,181.49$            6,072.73$            9,487.94$            
Difference YTD (400.89)$             (4,049.30)$           (3,210.47)$          5,951.19$           9,132.68$            15,205.41$          24,693.35$          
Total Receipts

2022-2023 % Change 0.803% 3.248% 3.912% 3.296% 4.546% 3.696% 4.064%
Total September October November December January February March 

Payroll -$                      299,480.91$        304,223.98$        303,581.92$       296,403.56$       294,668.45$        298,951.42$        302,117.08$        
Bill Roster -$                      18,881.39$          77,626.99$          55,307.36$         49,234.85$         58,892.75$          46,509.81$          44,589.44$          
Adjustments -$                      -$                    -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                     
Total Expenditures -$                      318,362.30$        381,850.97$        358,889.28$       345,638.41$       353,561.20$        345,461.23$        346,706.52$        
YTD Total -$                      318,362.30$        700,213.27$        1,059,102.55$    1,404,740.96$    1,758,302.16$     2,103,763.39$     2,450,469.91$     
Total Receipts -$                      -$                    -$                     -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                     



Overton Public School
Financial Information
Fund Securities

Accounts Funds Available FDIC Coverage Securities Coverage Date
Non-Interest Bearing 1,308,463.08$             250,000.00$         1,058,463.08$     1,308,463.08$         3/1/2024
Interest Bearing 4,241,575.61$             250,000.00$         3,991,575.61$     4,241,575.61$         
Total Funds 5,550,038.69$             500,000.00$         5,050,038.69$     5,550,038.69$         

Total Funds Available 5,550,038.69$             
Securities/Insurance 5,550,038.69$             

Collateralization -$                             

Interest Bearing Non-Interest Bearing

Account Name Account Number Funds Account Name Account Number Funds
Depreciation Fund 600443255 58,558.24$           Bond Fund 600443204 -$                                 
Clearing Account 600012733 13,274.14$           Booster Checking 600024880 16,996.79$                      

Reserve Fund 600443700 2,426,906.72$      Activity Fund 600025836 354,610.50$                    

MMA C.D. 2100007235 750,000.00$         Lunch Fund 600026360 70,839.90$                      

Building Fund 600731064 125,037.29$         General Fund 600029580 865,505.89$                    

Booster Club 600006539 2,546.94$             Site & Building 600029602 510.00$                           

Depreciation Fund #5 126887 161,354.94$         
Depreciation Fund #3 126888 288,537.03$         4,353,036.14$         General Fund

Depreciation Fund #4 126889 -$                      508,450.21$            Depreciation Fund

Building Fund 126886 112,950.33$         238,497.62$            Special Building Fund

Booster Club 600006498 5,060.59$             354,610.50$            Activity Fund

OHS C.D. 600006873 297,349.39$         70,839.90$              Food Nutritional Fund



Overton Public School
Board Financial Report
Two Year Comparison

Updated: 3/1/2024

2022-2023 2023-2024
Date 1-Mar-24 Difference Date 3/1/2024
Depreciation 489,792.07$           18,658.14$           Depreciation 508,450.21$      
MMA/CD 3,584,214.16$        (109,958.05)$        MMA/CD 3,474,256.11$   
Checking 369,024.67$           496,481.22$         Checking 865,505.89$      

Total 4,443,030.90$        ` 405,181.31$         Total 4,848,212.21$   

Current Date 3/1/2024
MMA 2,426,906.72$   
MMA C.D. 750,000.00$      
OHS C.D. 297,349.39$      

Total 3,474,256.11$   
Special Building

600731064 125,037.29$         Current Date 3/1/2024
126886 112,950.33$         Depreciation 58,558.24$        
Checking Accto. 510.00$                Depreciation 161,354.94$      

Total 238,497.62$         Depreciation 288,537.03$      

Total 508,450.21$      



Overton Public School
Board Financial Report

Month March Official
Year 2024 Three Year Comparison

Account 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024 $  Change % Change

MMA - Reserve 3,543,137.16$      3,584,214.16$       4,352,341.44$           768,127.28$        21.43%

Depreciation Fund 483,280.72$         489,792.07$          508,450.21$              18,658.14$          3.81%

Bond Fund -$                      -$                      -$                          -$                     0.00%

Special Building Fund 230,917.94$         233,962.13$          238,497.62$              4,535.49$            1.94%

Food Nutritional Fund 76,900.79$           58,792.30$           70,769.37$                11,977.07$          20.37%

Activities Fund 298,004.06$         336,502.79$          349,228.29$              12,725.50$          3.78%

Totals 4,632,240.67$      4,703,263.45$       5,519,286.93$           816,023.48$        17.35%

Total Reserve 4,026,417.88$      4,074,006.23$       4,860,791.65$           786,785.42$        19.31%



Overton Public School
3/1/2024 Certificate of Deposits

Security First Bank & FirsTier Bank
Fund Summary Amount

Depreciation Fund 449,891.97$                  

District MMA 1,047,349.39$               

Site & Building 112,950.73$                  

Total 1,610,192.09$               

Certificate Number Fund Account Name Time Interest Rate Last Maturity Maturity Date Current Amount
126886 Site & Building Building Fund 1 12 Months 5.5100% 10/19/2023 10/19/2024 112,950.73$                
126887 Depreciation Deprecation #5 12 Months 5.5100% 10/19/2023 10/19/2024 161,354.94$                
126888 Depreciation Deprecation #3 12 Months 5.5100% 10/19/2023 10/19/2024 288,537.03$                
126889 Depreciation Deprecation #4 12 Months 1.0000% 10/19/2020 10/19/2023 -$                             

2100007235 MMA MMA CD 10 Months 5.6600% 6/30/2023 4/30/2024 750,000.00$                
600006873 District MMA OHS CD 12 MONTHS 4.6200% 2/14/2023 2/14/2024 297,349.39$                

Total 1,610,192.09$             





ACTIVITY ACCOUNT 2023-2024
Date Disbursements Receipts Profit/Loss Ending Balance

Aug. 2023 17,728.73$      94,691.37$       76,962.64$             340,423.36$        
Sept. 19,153.71$      23,356.72$       4,203.01$               347,485.63$        
Oct. 16,700.00$      31,360.89$       14,660.89$             362,146.22$        
Nov. 22,867.05$      21,433.73$       (1,433.32)$              360,712.90$        
Dec. 20,667.78$      19,948.58$       (719.20)$                 356,461.09$        
Jan. 21,624.05$      13,529.49$       (8,094.56)$              348,366.53$        
Feb. 22,667.54$      23,529.30$       861.76$                  349,228.29$        
March -$                 -$                  -$                        -$                    
April -$                 -$                  -$                        -$                    
May -$                 -$                  -$                        -$                    
June -$                 -$                  -$                        -$                    
July -$                 -$                  -$                        -$                    
Aug-23 -$                 -$                  -$                        -$                    
Fiscal Year 123,680.13$    133,158.71$     9,478.58$               
School Year 141,408.86$    227,850.08$     86,441.22$             









9/1/2009

759
760

761

762

763

764

765

766

767

768

769

770

771

772

773

774

775

776

777

778

779

A B C D E F G H I

Food Program 2023-2024
Date Lunch Meals Breakfast Meals Summer Food Disbursements Receipts Profit/Loss Days Served Balance

Aug-23 3075 887 0 13,520.39$          47,837.40$       34,317.01$       16 78,630.12$         

Sept. 3532 1309 0 20,899.18$          18,100.69$       (2,798.49)$        17 75,831.63$         

Oct. 4038 1471 0 18,633.45$          19,974.32$       1,340.87$         20 77,172.50$         

Nov. 3029 1205 0 22,319.68$          20,300.30$       (2,019.38)$        16 75,153.12$         

Dec. 2982 911 0 16,218.02$          16,015.06$       (202.96)$           15 74,857.77$         

Jan. 3394 1053 0 16,167.89$          14,622.09$       (1,545.80)$        18 73,145.97$         

Feb. 3338 1084 0 20,515.19$          18,138.59$       (2,376.60)$        17 70,769.37$         

March 0 0 0 -$                     -$                 -$                  0 -$                   

April 0 0 0 -$                     -$                 -$                  0 -$                   

May 0 0 0 -$                     -$                 -$                  0 -$                   

June 0 0 0 -$                     -$                 -$                  0 -$                   

July 0 0 0 -$                     -$                 -$                  0 -$                   

Aug-20 0 0 -$                     -$                 -$                  0 -$                   

Fiscal Year 0 0 128,273.80$        154,988.45$     26,714.65$       0 -$                   

School Year 114,753.41$        154,988.45$     26,714.65$       0 -$                   

Totals 23388 7920 0 119.00

All Meals 31308



2023-2024
Free Lunch Reduced Lunch Full Pay Lunch Free Breakfast Reduced Breakfast Full Pay Breakfast Coivd Free Breakfast Covid Free Lunch Totals

July 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
June 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
May 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
April 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
March 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
February 1308 420 1610 514 196 374 0 0 4422
January 1378 420 1596 517 184 352 0 0 4447
December 1185 347 1450 465 156 290 0 0 3893
November 1224 50 1455 486 218 401 0 0 3834
October 1657 478 1903 731 268 472 0 0 5509
September 1451 533 1881 790 249 569 0 0 5473
August 1251 384 1440 470 153 264 0 0 3962
Totals 9454 2632 11335 3973 1424 2722 0 0 31540

2022-2023 Summer
Free Lunch Reduced Lunch Full Pay Lunch Free Breakfast Reduced Breakfast Full Pay Breakfast Coivd Free Breakfast Covid Free Lunch Totals

July 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
June 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
May 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
April 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
March 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
February 1457 521 1717 735 220 513 0 0 5163
January 1360 465 1707 610 160 395 0 0 4697
December 1225 411 1534 567 148 392 0 0 4277
November 1221 395 1497 692 183 437 0 0 4425
October 1474 517 1905 744 233 465 0 0 5338
September 1451 533 1881 790 249 569 0 0 5473
August 1110 374 1473 457 153 355 0 0 3922
Totals 9298 3216 11714 4595 1346 3126 0 0 33295





Overton Public School
Updated: 3/7/2024 Project List Summary
Paid -$                             
Not Paid 179,000.00$                

2023-2024 Expenditures & Projects
Estimated

Projects Amount Vendor Status Grant Funding Source Paid
5-8 L/A Curriculum Purchase -$                             Estimate & Presentation Possible Possible ESSER II N
Vehicle Purchases 120,000.00$                Two Ford Vans Estimate No Possibly ESSER III N
Striping Machine 5,000.00$                    TBA Estimate No General/Activity Funds N
1924 Door Replacement Project 19,000.00$                  Foster Lumber Co. Estimate No General Fund N
Window Covers 2,000.00$                    Bigsigns Estimate No General Fund N
Copiers (2 copiers) 18,000.00$                  Eakes Estimate No General Fund N
Roofing Repairs and Maintenance 15,000.00$                  Spartan Estimate No General Fund N

Total 179,000.00$                

Long Term Expenditures
Estimated

Project Amount Vendor Status Grant Funding Source Paid
School Bus -$                             -$                           

Total -$                             



P/T Conference Overall Attendance

SCHOOL YEAR FALL SPRING
2008-2009 84% 78%
2009-2010 83% 79%
2010-2011 79% 71%
2011-2012 78% 74%
2012-2013 81% 66%
2013-2014 85% 67%
2014-2015 84% 73%
2015-2016 79% 77%
2016-2017 70% 71%
2017-2018 82% 69%
2018-2019 74% 72%
2019-2020 75% 72%
2020-2021 77% 70%
2021-2022 72% 80%
2022-2023 78% 77%
2023-2024 79% 75%



LB 243 

Nebraska Department of Education Model Information 

The Nebraska Legislature is considering LB 243 which is essentially a revenue lid even though it is 
entitled a Property Tax Authority bill. This bill is yet another mechanism to control Nebraska school’s 
revenue growth. It seems that a levy lid, a budget authority lid, and a property tax authority are not 
enough for the current legislature.  The purpose of the bill is to limit the amount of property tax that 
school district can access through a revenue lid mechanism. 

The bill will allow a school district’s revenue to grow at 3.0% annually. It does not say the property tax 
asking can increase by 3.0% but the overall revenue of a school (adding to and then backing out other 
revenue to get the final property tax authority). The growth takes into consideration poverty and LEP 
growth (SNAP and Medicaid Free). 

Formula: Base Amount 

Base Amount 2023-2024 Property Tax Request 

+ 

2022-2023 SPED Reimbursement (additional funds from 42% to 80% reimbursement) 

+ 

2023-2024 TEEOSA Paid  

+ 

Other General Fund Revenues 

= 

New Revenue Base Amount   X   Growth Percentage (3.0%) = New Year Revenue Cap **Note the board 
can approve the 3.0% growth to as high as 7.0% given Overton is below the 471 student cap. 

Property Tax Authority 

New Revenue Cap + 2022-2023 Other General Fund Revenues + 2023-2024 SPED Reimbursement + 
2024-2025 TEEOSA Paid + Prior Year Unused Property Tax Authority = 2024-2025 General Fund Property 
Tax Authority. The calculation below is used only if the board approved a higher than 3.0% growth or 
had some type of override.  

General Fund Property Tax Authority + Additional Property Tax Authority + Levy Override + Unused 
Property Tax Authority + Additional Approved patron overrides = Total 2024-2025 General Fund 
Property Tax Authority. 

 

Total Revenue Growth Cap – TEEOSA – SPED – Other Revenue = Property Tax Authority 

Scenario – Could be a situation where the property tax request from 2024-2025 is actually lower than 
the 2023-2024 property tax request. The reason is the overall revenue increase from the year before 



calculation (3.0%) and then subtract the TEEOSA increase, subtract the SPED reimbursement increase, 
subtract other revenues increase, and the total property tax authority would decrease.  

EX. School District X had 333 million property tax authority in 2023-2024. In 2024-2025 the property tax 
authority was 291 million a decrease of 42 million. How? The 3.0% revenue increase was 28 million. 
There was a TEEOSA increase of 32 million, SPED increase of 30 million, other revenue increase of 8 
million. 

28 million allowable revenue growth cap – 32 million in TEEOSA increase – 30 million in SPED 
reimbursement increase – 8 million other revenue increase = -42 million decrease in Property Tax 
Authority. Property Tax is part of the revenue formula (333-291=42). 

What to watch for in the Legislature: 

 1. Hard caps – no board approved percentage increases.  

2. Take away board approved from the base 4-7%. Can’t carry into the future.  

3. Lowering percentages. 

 

LB 243 Model Effect 

The model would limit the property tax authority for Overton Public Schools to a $72, 911.00 increase 
from the 2023-2024 property tax request if the 3.0% growth was approved. The maximum growth of 
7.0% would allow the board to access $3,920.435. 

 



5/25/2023 Overton Public School Comments

2023-2024 State Aid Model Calculated by System *Net Option Funding 405,132.00$                       State Aid Difference 94,545.00$          

Model *Allocated Income Tax Refund 22,119.00$                         Net Option Funding 33,253.00$          

*Prior Year Correction -$                                    Alloc. Income Tax (3,186.00)$           

Total State Aid = 801,260.00$                       

Name 2023-2024 Needs Yield from Local Effort Net Option Funding Income Tax Rebate Other Receipts Foundation Aid Total Resources Equalization Aid Non-Min. Levy Total State Aid
Overton Public School 4,586,602.00$                            3,495,723.00$                         405,132.00$                    22,119.00$                       404,681.00$            374,009.00$                            4,701,664.00$                    -$                       -$                           801,260.00$        
Comparison -$                                            92,431.00$                              33,253.00$                      (3,186.00)$                       (71,914.00)$             374,009.00$                            424,593.00$                       (309,531.00)$         -$                           94,545.00$          

2/1/2024 Overton Public School Comments

2024-2025 State Aid Model Calculated by System *Net Option Funding 343,587.00$                       State Aid Difference (42,607.00)$         

Model *Allocated Income Tax Refund 27,813.00$                         Net Option Funding (61,545.00)$         

*Prior Year Correction -$                                    Alloc. Income Tax 5,694.00$            

Total State Aid = 758,653.00$                       

Name 2023-2024 Needs Yield from Local Effort Net Option Funding Income Tax Rebate Other Receipts Foundation Aid Total Resources Equalization Aid Non-Min. Levy Total State Aid
Overton Public School 4,809,380.00$                            3,782,684.00$                         343,587.00$                    27,813.00$                       518,277.00$            387,253.00$                            5,059,614.00$                    -$                       -$                           758,653.00$        
Comparison 222,778.00$                               286,961.00$                            (61,545.00)$                     5,694.00$                         113,596.00$            13,244.00$                              357,950.00$                       -$                       -$                           (42,607.00)$         


	Activities Account Financial Report
	Activities Account Financial Summary
	Activity Check Register
	Agenda
	Bill Roster
	Board Meeting Notice
	Board Policy 5001
	CD Summary
	Clearing Account Check Register
	Comments
	February 2024 Board Minutes
	Food Program Check Register
	Food Program Financial Report
	Food Program Financial Summary
	Fund Securities
	Master Pages 1-3
	NSAA Sportsmanship Criteria
	NSAA Sportsmanship Scores
	Parent Teacher Conference Attendance
	Payroll and Bill Roster
	Three Year Comparison
	Two Year Comparison

